Contracts Outline
Spring 2007 – Newell
I. The Agreement Process
A. The Nature of Assent

The Reasonable Man test


- would a reasonable man in the position of the π believe there was an (offer, acceptance)

→ test is really just making it a question for the judge not the jury


→ outward manifestations trump subjective intent


B. Offer defined in Restatement 2nd “an offer is the manifestation of willingness to enter into a bargain so made as to justify another person in understanding that his assent to that bargain is invited and will conclude it.”


Williston: Do the facts show that some performance was promised in positive terms in return for something requested?


Factors that courts consider:


a. Was the language of offer, promise or commitment? As opposed to asking, interested


b. Was the proposal to one person or a group?


c. How clear and definite are the terms?


d. Was the communication in response to a request for an offer?


e. Did the communication come out of the blue or is there history?


C. Acceptance – “voluntary exercise of the power conferred by the offer”


-Offeror is master of his offer, UCC 2-206 offer invites acceptance by anyway reasonable (ex: phone, fax, email, mail) unless designated otherwise. 

- must be definite and unequivocal – what would a reasonable person in the position of the offeror think you did?


- with very limited exceptions, silence ≠ acceptance


D. Duration of Offers

- Terminating the Power of Acceptance – if it has been accepted you cannot revoke


*** offerees reject, offerors revoke*** 


R. 2nd : Terminating by



a. rejection, or counter offer by the offeree



b. lapse of time – either specified or reasonable



c. revocation by offeror



d. death or incapacity of the offeror or offeree


- What is a reasonable time to accept/decline an offer? In a face to face conversation, while the conversation is still going on.  This is a question of fact for the jury.


- An offer is made when it is received, not when it is posted.  So when drafting put a date not a number of days.


- a counter offer is ordinarily a rejection, but there is a possibility that one can couter and still communicate that they are considering the original.


- Indirect revocation – actions which indicate to the offeree that the offer is no longer open. (Dickerson v. Dodds – Dickerson showed that he knew Dodds didn’t want to sell, rumors can rise to the level of indirect revocation)


- if it is unclear whether the offer is for a unilateral or bilateral K the presumption is bilateral (unilateral is where there is merely an act on one side – I’ll give you $100 to cross the Brooklyn Bridge)



- restatement says an option K is made by the beginning of tender or performance, but the duty to perform does not eventuate until completion


- sham consideration – form says enforce, function says don’t


- bidding process – subs are bound by their bid to generals, but generals do not bind themselves to using the sub they use in the proposal – chaos in bidding war, need time to investigate, gen’s rely on subs price, but subs aren’t relying on gens


E. Offer and Acceptance at a Distance – The Mailbox Rule

Rule for Bar Exam: As a general rule, acceptance is effective on dispatch, everything else on receipt.
· with an option K restatement says acceptance needs to be on receipt (with the option time)
· UCC 2-207 “Battle of the Forms” – courts worried about disagreement in boiler plate forms equaling failure to make a K, so as long as the important stuff is the same you have a K
· How it usually works: buyer is offeror, sends a purchase order, sellers sends back an invoice – both forms have small print that no one reads OR the parties agree over the phone and then each sends a confirming form that no one reads

· Mirror image rule said if the small print was different then it was a counteroffer, not an acceptance (favors the offeree), under UCC it is an acceptance (favors the offeror)

· Disclaimer of warranties on seller’s form is probably a material alteration (2b)

· if offeree wants to counteroffer they need to make in express and clear- bold print, quote route b language

3 ways to deal with conflicting terms

- treat difference terms as additional terms and use (UCC 2-207 (2))?
- offeree’s terms fall out – Summers 

- knock out rule – conflicting terms cancel each other out and we use the UCC to fill in, but UCC is pro buyer so the knock out rule is too

II. Substantive Content of the Duty to Perform
A. The Parol Evidence Rule

- things that went on before writing
Philosophical Differences Between Williston and Corbin

Williston (pro-writing)

1. Personal Responsibility (read and understand)

2. Certainty (parties and others know what the deal is; avoid constant dispute)

3. writings are good (evidence, fairness, efficiency) and should be protected

4. juries are unduly emotional and sympathetic to underdog

Corbin (pro-extrinsic)

1. Frailties of parties (unbalanced bargaining power, harried and complex nature of life)

2. Frailties of language – it is hard to say everything you want to say perfectly at one time

3. Frailties of transactional approach – things sometimes come together over time

4. Juries are capable of fettering out the truth

Four possible Parol Evidence Tests

1. 4 Corners or Appearance, look only at the document, Admit extrinsic evidence only if writing appears incomplete (problem: if you haven’t looked at extrinsic ev how to do you know its incomplete?
2. Restatement §240: look at the document, Admit extrinsic ev only if proponent of extrinsic ev persuades that it is the type of thing that would normally and naturally be stated separately(reasonable people in the position of the parties would state it separately); look at surrounding circumstances (can be a liberal or a conservative test depending on the circuit) → must show that reasonable minds could differ

a. Collateral agreement

b. Not contradictory to the written K (express or impliedly

c. Not the type expected to be in writing

3. UCC 2-202: look at doc, extrinsic ev and circumstances; admit ev unless proponent of writing persuades it would certainly have been included (reasonable people in the position of the parties would have included it in the writing)
4. Corbin: any credible evidence should be looked at; admit evidence that: (1) extrinsic agreement was made and (2) parties did not intend to wipe away with writing

B. Principles of Interpretation

UCC 2-208
1. express terms

2. course of performance – conduct in performing the K after it was formed
3. course of dealing (sequence of conduct btw the parties prior to the K in prior comparable transactions with each other)

4. usage of trade

5. gap fillers
C. Gap Fillers

- a gap filler is a provision legally implied into a K to supplement or clarify its express language; only used when there is no pertinent contextual evidence 
How do we know we have a gap? Interpret the K to see if it answers some question the parties have 

- use UCC to fill in gaps for sale of goods
D. Good Faith

Restatement 205 – faithfulness to the spirit of the K – cases are often a battle btw letter of the K and spirit of the K
UCC 1-205 – general obligation of good faith

III. Conditional Nature of the Duty to Perform

A. Definitions

- Promise (R.2nd)– a manifestation of intention to act or refrain from action in a specified way, so made as to justify a promisee in understanding that a commitment has been made.
- Condition- an event, not certain to occur, which must occur, unless the non-occurrence is excused, before performance of a K becomes due.
- R. 2nd says if it is unsure whether something is a promise or a condition the preference is promise since it produces less hardship. → we don’t want forfeitures unless the parties bargained that way
-promissory condition – when something is both a promise and a condition

- condition precedent – describes an event that has to occur before performance becomes due
- condition subsequent – describes an event that extinguishes a duty that has arisen

- tender – offer to perform coupled with the apparent ability to perform

B. Excuses and Avoidance of Express Conditions

1. Modification – must have consideration, modern rule is consideration is not necessary if the mod is fair and reasonable

2. Estoppel – waiver and reliance


3. Express Waiver – not a material provision, usually after expiration


4. Election (implied waiver) – not relying on condition until very late in the game, usually ins. Companies you can only waive non-material conditions

5. Interpretation – not perfrect performance, but close – you did enough


6. Prevention/hinderance – ins. Agent keeps forgetting the forms until time lapses


7. Impossibility – whatever was required was hard to do (Hanna case – car in the river)

8. Ignore/equity – forfeiture look huge so court just writes that part out

C. Is breach material? Factors from Restatement:

a. the extent to which the inured party will obtain the substantial benefit which he could have reasonably anticipated

b. the extent to which the injured party may be adequately compensated in damages for lack of complete performance,

c. the extent to which the party failing to perform has already partly peformed or made preparations for performance

d. the greater or less hardship on the party failing to perform in terminating the K

e. the willful, negligent or innocent behavior of the party failing to perform

f. the greater or less uncertainty that the party failing to perform will perform the remainder of the K

D. What does it take to be repudiation?

  - this is express words, in writing, saying they are going to quit

  -  action that unequivocally says I’m not going to do it

→ don’t want to give π damages and let them avoid their responsibilities unless we are sure Δ won’t perform

VI. Grounds of Rightful Cessation
A. Mutual Mistake

Mistake – Erroneous belief that is not in accord with the facts, can be mutual of unilateral, distinguished from improvident acts (stupid thing to do), distinguished from misunderstanding, mistake is something that is already a fact, impossibility is something that changes after the K 

1. Restatement 2nd 

a. Mistake goes to basic assumption on which K was made;

b. Material effect on the agree exchange

c. Risk not allocated to disadvantaged party

i. By K

ii. By conscious ignorance (both don’t know if it’s a diamond)

iii. By court

2. Factors to Consider

a. Size of mistake

b. Does consideration paid reflect assumption of risk

c. Does one party have greater knowledge or reason to know of mistake?-fault, advantage taking notions

d. Was disadvantaged/mistaken party particularly stupid?

e. How promptly was mistake discovered?

3. Lack of reasons to enforce a promise

a. Morality of promising – considering the mistake

b. Bargain/private autonomy

c. Reliance – how justifiable?

d. Unjust enrichment

B. Unilateral Mistake


1. Criteria for rescission from a unilateral mistake in a bid situation


a. The bidder has acted honestly, in good faith, and without gross or willful negligence;



b. The bidder was reasonably prompt in notifying the King party of the error;



c. The mistake pertained to a material part of the K;



d. The mistake was of such magnitude that enforcement or forfeiture would be unconscionable;



e. Relief would return the partier to the status quo without prejudice to the King party; and



f. Evidence is presented which convincingly establishes the mistake in fact exists.

C. Impossibility – when it is literally impossible to perform


- In Ks in which the performance depends on the continued existence of a given person or thing, a condition is implied that the impossibility of performance arising from the perishing of the person or thing shall excuse the performance. – Taylor v. Caldwall (1863)


- This defense rarely works.

D. Impracticability – when it no longer makes sense to compel performance

a. UCC 2-615 “… if performance as agree has been made impractivable by the occurrence of a contingency the non-occurrence of which was a basic assumption on which the K was made…”



b. Judge Wright




i. A contingency – something unexpected must have occurred;

ii. the risk of the unexpected occurrence must NOT have been allocated either by agreement or custom;

iii. occurrence of the contingency must have rendered performance commercial impracticable.

E. Frustration of Purpose
- in England, they stick it with impracticability

- here you divide btw paying party and performing party


→ performing party = impracticability


→ paying party = frustration of purpose

· something patent and obvious to other party was the purpose and then that principle purpose was substantially frustrated

· not the fault of the parties

· harder to make this excuse work than impracticability, at least in the US
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